United Nations A\c5/53/5R 23

General Assembly Distr.: General

v 11 February 1999
SN==77~ - English
=7 (Official Records Original: French

Fifth Committee

Summary record of the 23rd meeting
Held at Headquarters, New York, on Tuesday, 10 November 1998, at 10 a.m.

Chairman M. AbElan ... (Armenia)
Chairman of the Advisory Committee on Administrative
and Budgetary QuestionMr. Mselle

Contents
Agenda item 120: United Nations common systemr{tinued
Agenda item 121: United Nations pension systemntinued

Agenda item 144: Report of the Secretary-General on theitieswf the Office of
Internal Oversight Services

This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be sent under the signature of a member of the
delegation concernedithin one week of the date of publicatibmthe Chief of the Official Records
Editing Section, room DC2-750, 2 United Nations Plaza, and incorporated in a copy of the record.

Corrections will be issued after the end of the session, in a separate corrigendum for each Committee.

98-82240 (E)


<<ODS JOB NO>>N9882240E<<ODS JOB NO>> <<ODS DOC SYMBOL1>>A/C.5/53/SR.23<<ODS DOC SYMBOL1>> <<ODS DOC SYMBOL2>><<ODS DOC SYMBOL2>> 


A/C.5/53/SR.23

The meeting was called to order at 10 a.m. and staff associations to maintain relations of mutual trust, in
the interests of staff members and of the Organization in
general. The Office of Human Resources Management could

Agenda item 120: United Nations common system play an important role in that respect.
(continued (A/53/30 and Corr.1, A/52/811, A/IC.5/53/4 _ _ _
and A/C.5/53/27) 6. Mr. Bel Hadj Amor (Chairman of the International

. Civil Service Commission), replying to questions raised by
1. Mr. Darwish (Egypt) said that he supported thejelegations about the report of the Commission (A/53/30 and
statement made by the representative of Indonesia on belgdf 1), said that he had noted the keen interest of delegations
ofthe Group of 77 and China. His delegation welcomed thg the consultative process; the Commission would closely
role played by the International Civil Service Commissiofonitor the proposed changes in its working methods so as
(ICSC) in harmonizing the conditions of service in thgy ensure that they led to greater efficiency. As to the financial
organizations of the common system. It believed that thepjications, the creation of working groups always involved
independence of the Commission should be preserved aidt byt only approximate estimates could be given at the
that the members of the Commission should be chosen freqirrent stage, since it was not known how many working
among the most competent candidates in accordance Witups would be required. The Commission had consulted its
articles 3 to 5 of its statute. legal expert to ensure that the amendments to its rules of
2.  Egypt reaffirmed the importance of the Noblemairerocedure were not in conflict with its statute; it was
principle and the Flemming principle; the Noblemairgonfident that they respected the spirit of the statute; that had
principle, in particular, should enable the United Nations taot been the case with all of the Working Group’s original
secure the services of the most qualified staff. Sta#oposals, which was why the Commission had introduced
development must be ensured, however, in order to devel®pme changes.
the new style of management, one of the objectives of reform.  \yith regard to the margin/base floor salary, the
3. With regard to the report of the International CiviCommission had been responsive to the concerns about low
Service Commission for the year 1998 (A/53/30), higargins at upper levels of the salary scale and high margins
delegation welcomed the efforts made by the Working Grow lower levels, and would review proposals at its next session
on the Consultative Process and Working Arrangements\W#th a view to addressing that concern.
ICSC. It supported the comment made in paragraph 47 ofthe  \jith regard to the Noblemaire principle and its
report that the Working Group report should be revieweglp|ication, the Commission would take into account the
bearing in mind the Commission’s independence and ¥fws expressed by delegations when it undertook a review
responsibility for the regulation ofomditions of service. His qfthe subjectin 2001, in whichinter alia, it would consider
delegation endorsed the Commission’s recommendationsijgngetail whether a basket of comparators was feasible,
increasing dependency allowances and establishing a sing|thout prejudice to other possible approaches. At that time,
post adjustment index at Geneva. It also endorsed t@,ould also return to the question of a comparison of total
proposed changes to the language incentive scheme (paggfpensation in the German and United States civil services,
207 and 208 (a)). In that respect, it fully supported thgnqg would conduct total compensation comparisons, not only
statement by the representative of Morocco, who had callggth potential comparators, but also between the current

for equality among all the official languages of theomparator and the United Nations common system.
Organization, including Arabic. L . .
9.  Whenthe Commission had considered the question of

4. His delegation supported the Commission‘gxpatriation, as requested by the General Assembly, it had
recommendations regarding the maintenance of the curr@aly extensive information on the item, which it had
comparator civil service as the only comparator, until furtheignsidered sufficient to be able to report to the General
notice, and the adoption of measures to ensure security ?¢kemply at the current session. To clarify a
protect the privileges and immunities of international staffjisunderstanding, he said that in its review, the Commission
members Of the Un|ted Nations in the fleld. In.add|t|0n, |had considered the Comparator’s expatriate benefit package
supported the comments of the representative of Japgp federal civil service staff working outside the United
concerning the increase in the number of resignations in tBeates of America, but had not considered the case of United
Organization. States foreign service staff, who represented a small minority
5. He stressed that it was important for staff association§United States staff working abroad.

to participate in the work of ICSC and for the Commission



A/C.5/53/SR.23

10. Turning to the question of a single post adjustment for grantwas to facilitate the reintegration of children in the staff
Geneva, he said that in resolution 52/216, the General member’s hmméyg
Assembly had welcomed with appreciation the extensi\ie5

. . . e o Replying to the questions concerning human resources
information provided by the Commission; the Commissio pYIng d g

felt that it had ided all ible inf : anagement, he recalled that the Commission had decided
now felt that it had provided all possible information on §, 1 ggg that it did not have a mandate to determine desirable

subject which entailed technical, legal and administratived i -
ranges for the organizations; furthermore, it did not normall
difficulties, which it had brought to the attention of the& g g y
b

G A blv- it tothe G A ecome involved in issues relating to security in the field,
enerai Assembly, it was how up to the eneral Assem cept insofar as the granting of hazard pay and the hardship
to reach a decision.

scheme were concerned.

11. Thed B_oarq .Of Audltorsh had made SEveralg Lastly, referring to relations with the Federation of
recommenaations in Its report on the management reV'ev"lﬂ{ernational Civil Servants’ Associations (FICSA) and the

the secretariat of ICSC (A/52/811), particularly Concemin@oordinating Comnmittee for Independent Staff Unions and

the choice of outlets for price collection and the need Rssociations of the United Nations System (CCISUA), he

simplify survey questiqnnaires. They had been trgnsmittﬁ ted that the Commission had been disappointed at some of
without delay to the Advisory Committee on Post Adjustme%e comments made

Questions, which had made recommendations in that respect

which the Commission would consider at its 1999 spring?- The Chairman said he took it that the Committee
session, particularly with regard to the post adjustment indégshed to conclude the general debate on agenda item 120.
structure and statistical sampling techniques for establishing. |t was so decided.

expenditure weights more accurately. The Board of Auditors

had also noted (A/52/811, para. 35) the low response rajg§enda item 121: United Nations pension system

to household expenditure surveys. The members of th&ntinued (A/53/9 and A/53/511; A/C.5/53/3 and
Advisory Committee on Post Adjustment Questions had felt/c 5/53/18)

however, that the rates were comparable to those in similar

types of surveys of similar populations, and that prima/y&neral debate

importance should be given to improving the quality antl9. As there were no delegations wishing to take the floor,
consistency of the data collected. the Chairman said he took it that the Committee had

12.  With regard to the outsourcing of post adjustment dafgPncluded its general debate on the agenda item.

he recalled that in 1995, for example, the Commission had. It was so decided.

used rent data from the Interorganizations Study Section/

Eurostat in place-to-place comparisons, and then for periogigenda item 144: Report of the Secretary-General on

post adjustment. It was continuing to study the use of sughe activities of the Office of Internal Oversight

data from external sources, including private companies, Services(A/51/432, A/51/530 and Corr.1 and A/51/801;
expenses and costs. It had to be recognized, however, thapme2/426 and A/53/428)

source fitted the Organization's needs perfectly, anéjl

. Mr. Paschke (Under-Secretary-General for Internal
adaptation would always be necessary.

Oversight Services), introducing the report of the Secretary-
13. With regard to the Flemming principle, it had beeGeneral on the activities of the Office of Internal Oversight
observed that according to the Board of Auditors, the curregervices during the period from 1 July 1997 to 30 June 1998
application of that principle resulted in levels higher than thgy/53/428), noted that the Office had matured and that its
75th percentile of the local labour market. As a result of itgorking methods had become an integral part of the
most recent review of the application of the Flemminghanagement culture of the United Nations. The number of
principle, the Commission had made modifications in ordegeports published by the Office had increased each year since
to ensure a greater representation of the public sector in logalinception. Many of those reports were mandated by the
salary surveys. In so doing, the Commission had considernegislative bodies, which was certainly encouraging, since it
that it was broadening the comparison base to reflect baHuicated the interest of Member States in the work of the
best and prevailing conditions of service at the duty stationsffice. On the other hand, by reducing the resources of OIOS,

14. With regard to the education grant, the Commission héH?h reports 9urtailed, to some extent, its ability to react to
always maintained that entitlement to the grant should k@pical oversight problems as they surfaced. Moreover,
limited to expatriate staff members, as the sole purpose of théreasing demands were being placed on the Office by



A/C.5/53/SR.23

separately administered funds and programmes, particularly management culture of the United Nations, and that its reports
in the field of investigations. were a source of data on the reform process. He welcomed the
e(afﬁce’s gradual shift to a horizontal approach in order to be

able to address problems of a systemic nature. That new

rate for audit recommendations had increased to 73 per cétiiProach would improve programme management and
which was a good average. A chart inserted at the endqﬁl'very and would contrlbu_te t_o the long-term beneficial
chapter | of the report, illustrating the intended impact diect of O10S on the Organization.

OI0S recommendations, could be viewed as an additional 26. The European Union concurred with the Office that
tool for evaluating the performance of the Office; more than administrative problems might be the main impediment to
two thirds of its recommendations were focused on improved improved efficiency in its substantive work. Since the staff
operational efficiency or effectiveness and improved represented both the largest expense and the most significant
management control. That demonstrated the proactive resource of the United Nations, it was entirely appropriate
character of internal oversight. that human resources management should be one of the

23.  During the period under review, the Office had focuseLHiorities of the Office. The European Union believed that the
on a number of priority areas; with regard to peacekeepiﬁﬁv_'ew _Of the functlonmg_ of common Se_f‘"ces' which were

missions, it had identified certain administrative Weaknessggm_g mtegra_ted_ at various d“tY stations, would help to
in relation to payments of mission subsistence allowance a‘ﬁ'bl“_'”ate _dupllc_:atlon. MUCh remained to be d_one, howeV(_ar,
the liquidation of missions (A/53/428, paras. 16—42). THO disseminate information about the delegation of authority
Office had intensified the audit coverage of humanitariaf'?\nd toinstil a sense of ac_:countabmty among staff members;
activities, particularly those of the Office of the United”that context, no authority should be delegated without the

Nations High Commissioner for Refugees (UNHCR), whicHrior development of effective accountability mechanisms.

had initiated a major decentralization effort, and of 27. The rate ofimplementation of OIOS recommendations
procurement matters (insurance policies, rental and space was one of the best indicators of its effectiveness, and he
management and aviation services) (A/53/428, paras. 60—70). noted with satisfaction that the rates had increased further.
It had revisited the International Criminal Tribunal for Credit for that success was due to the regular compliance
Rwanda as a follow-up to the review conductedl®96 monitoring system of OlOS, which must remain an essential
(A/53/428, paras. 72-75) and was currently iind the component of its work. The European Union welcomed the
International Criminal Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia. introduction of a new performance indicator, namely, the

In terms of human resources management, a new priority area  intended impact of the recommendations, which would enable
for the Office, it had focused more specifically on an analysis programme managers, Member States and the Office itself
of the recruitment process (A/53/428, paras. 77-78). to evaluate the impact of its work.

22. During the reporting period, the Office had generat
savings in the amount &21.2 nillion. The implementation

24. Thefinal section of the report, chapter Ill, provideda 28. The issuance of Guidelines for Programme Monitoring
summary of major activities by oversight functions. As some and Evaluation would help programme managers to assume
of the cases discussed in that chapter were the subject of greater responsibilities and improve their evaluation of
current disciplinary or legal proceedings, the report activities, and would promote enhanced effectiveness.

mentioned only the general subject and avoided giving names 1,0 European Union welcomed the improved

in order to protect individual rights. Lastly, the mes,saggoordination among the Office of Internal Oversight Services,
conveyed by the annual report on OIOS was thata functlomﬂge Board of Auditors and the Joint Inspection Unit, which

interna_l ovgrsight mechanism was proof of a better, healthi@n{:is essential for harmonizing oversight throughout the
Organization and that the Offlce.hacli become an esseml'J"Hited Nations system. Furthermore, it noted that many of the
compongnt of the new organizational culture of thﬁ.lnds and programmes were cooperating very closely with the
Secretariat. Office, particularly in the area of investigation. The requests

25. Mr. Sucharipa (Austria), speaking on behalf of the for assistance submitted to the Office’s Investigations Section
European Union, the Central and Eastern European countries  clearly demonstrated its usefulness. The European Union
associated with the European Union and the associated appreciated the cooperation between the Investigations
country Cyprus, noted with satisfaction that the Office of Section and the authorities of certain countries; the decision
Internal Oversight Services, established four years earlier in  taken by programme managers to seek criminal prosecutions
order to enhance effectiveness and transparency within the reflected a desire to punish criminal conduct and was fully
Organization, had become an integral part of the new consistent with increased accountability.



A/C.5/53/SR.23

30. Mr. Sial (Pakistan) noted with satisfaction that distribution within the context of recruitment. The Fifth
considerable savings and recoveries had been achieved asa Committee should consider that question.

result of the actions of Office of Internal Oversight Servicege | 1o period 1996-1997, more than 30 per cent of all

du_nng the pen(_)d under rev!eV\{. He also noted Fhe high raJﬁ%nsultancy contracts had been awarded to the nationals of
ofimplementation of the Office’s recommendations. four countries. The international character of the Organization
31. His delegation was of the view that the work of mustbe maintained; justification should therefore be given
oversight bodies should be more closely coordinated. The for the Office’s recommendation that the principle of
Office of Internal Oversight Services should have focused less  geographical bdlante 30t be applied indiscriminately

on audits, which were satisfactorily carried out by the Board in order to avoid travel expenses.

of Auditors, and more on inspections, evaluations and t%%. His delegation noted with concern the poor internal
monitoring of effectiveness in carrying out programmes ar}%ntrols in the United Nations Conference on Trade and
mandates. The recommendations formulated by the Adws%&velopment (UNCTAD) (paras. 114 and 115). Nonetheless,
Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions, Ehlyone case of misuse of funds had been cited (pE54).

consultation with the Board of Auditors, were different fron’HiS delegation wished to know whether other cases had been
those of the Office with regard to internal control standargfh
it

approved by the International Organization of Supreme Au _
Institutions (A/53508). His delegation looked forward to the38.  The report on programme performance of the United

consideration of the report of the Secretary-General on tH¥@tions for the biennium 1996-1997 (A/53/122) prepared
question (A/52/867). by the Office of Internal Oversight Services gave no

. . . explanation for the very low rate of implementation of
32. His delegation W'S.hed to know whether the I\/Iontreuéctivities categorized as priority areas in the medium-term
Cor.”erenc? referred to in the report (A/53/428) had beg n. Moreover, the Office had recommended the introduction
United Ngtlons conferencg oran mtergov.ernmental'meen ‘results-based budgeting without having carried out an in-
It al.sp wished to know in yvhat C"J‘P."J‘C'tY the Office h_a pth evaluation of the current system. The Under-Secretary-
partlmpgted and whether |t§ p_art,|C|pat|on had entail eneral might wish to provide information to the Fifth
expenditures from the Organization’s regular budget. Committee in that regard. Lastly, no information was given
33. The Secretary-General should indicate in his annual inter,alia, the utilization of some $10 million in savings,
report how many of the recommendations sent to him were  which reflected a lack of coordination between the Office and
not agreeable to programme managers in terms of paragraph the Programme PlannindgatdBvision. There was a
21 of the circular on the establishment of the Office of need for better coordination of all relevant departments in the
Internal Oversight Services (ST/SGB/273) and what the preparation of the report on programme performance.

procedure was for dealing with such recommendations. 39. Mr. Moktefi (Algeria) expressed surprise at the use,

34. With regard to paragraph 42 of the report, his inthe preface to the report, of the term “clients” to refer to
delegation noted that the Committee for Programme and public-sector agencies. With regard to the Guidelines for
Coordination had given its qualified endorsement to some Internal Control Standards, he noted that the Advisory
recommendations (A/53/16, para. 242 on). In that context, Committee, believing that those guidelines were too general,
he stressed that any recommendation requiring legislative had considered that they should not be incorporated in the
action should be submitted by the executive heaatording  Financial Regulations (see A/53/508). His delegation wished

to established procedures. to know the views of the Under-Secretary-General on that

35. His delegation noted with concern the observations wightPIeCt: With regard to the follow-up of the Office’s

regard to human resources management, contained §§ommendations, his delegation wondered whether the
paragraphs 76 to 78 of the report. In particular, recalling th%frlce reaI_Iy needed t_he additional post r_equested in the

the Office of Human Resources Management had stated tHB‘?face to its report, given tha_t, as stated in paragraph 5 of
recruitment normally did not take 461 days, he suggested tiAf "6PO't, @ computerized monitoring system now tracked the

it should provide an explanation in that regard; the Undef2!0W-up of recommendations.

Secretary-General for Internal Oversight Services should 40. With regard to the tables on pages 10 and 11 of the
clarify what he had meant by his statement that the report, his delegation wished to know whether the
recruitment process lacked transparency (para. 78). overpayments, whose recoveryrepresented 50 per cent of the
Furthermore, insufficient consideration had been given to the  savings and recoveries, were attributable to management
potential impact of the delegation of authority on geographical errors or were the beneficiaries’ doing. According to the third



A/C.5/53/SR.23

table, the Office focused far too heavily on audit, as opposed
to monitoring and investigative, activities. A statistical
assessment of increased productivity and effectiveness as a
result of internal oversight services would also be useful.

41. His delegation noted, in paragraph 74 of the report, that
the Registrar of the International Tribunal for Rwanda had not
fully agreed with the Office’s conclusions and wondered
whether there were other instances where officials disagreed
with the Office. With regard to the remark contained in
paragraph 9 on the discussion in the Fifth Committee of a
report of the Secretary-General, his delegation believed that
the Office should not be commenting on the work of an
intergovernmental body. It was equally surprising that the
Office would make recommendations concerning the
flexibility of programme managers with regard to the
management of human and financial resources (para. 185).
Lastly, the Office’s annual reports should contain its
programme of work for the following period.

The meeting rose at 11.20 a.m.



